
CITY COUNCIL 

WORK SESSION 

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 11, 2012 
 

Council President Acosta called the work session to order. He announced that the 

purpose of the session is to conduct interviews for applicants for the City Council 

District 1 seat, vacated by Councilor Acosta when he was appointed Council President. 

 

Council President Acosta stated that the interviews are open to the public and that 

applicants present for the interviews may remain seated in the audience during all 

interviews. He asked Legal Specialist Tonya Butler, Esq. to conduct the interview 

session. 

 

Legal Specialist Butler announced that those being interviewed will be asked questions 

by the City Council members present.  She stated that the interviews will be conducted 

in 20 minute blocks and applicants should try to keep their responses to the questions to 

three (3) minutes maximum. She stated that she would begin each interview by asking 

the applicant why he or she applied for the position. 

 

ATTENDANCE 
 

Council President Acosta 

Councilor Goodman-Hinnershitz, District 2 

Councilor Sterner, District 3 

Councilor Marmarou, District 4 

Councilor Reed, District 5 

Councilor Waltman, District 6 

Legal Specialist T. Butler 

City Clerk L. Kelleher 

 

INTERVIEWS 

 

Legal Specialist Butler asked Randy Corcoran to step forward and asked why he 

applied for the position. 

 

Mr. Corcoran stated that several months ago he called the City Clerk to describe some 

neighborhood problems.  He stated that he went door to door to find out what 

concerns neighbors had.  He stated that the City Clerk helped him resolve the 

neighborhood problems and for the first time he felt he had a voice.  He noted his 



desire to expand his voice to address the problems and issues experienced by all District 

1 residents.  He described the management skills he has to help him succeed as a 

Councilor. 

 

Legal Specialist Butler inquired if Mr. Corcoran was involved in the CORE program.  

He replied affirmatively and stated that if appointed he will withdraw his name as a 

CORE Realtor but will stay on the Reading Berks Association of Realtors (RBAR) CORE 

Committee. 

 

Councilor Marmarou asked the applicant to describe his efforts to resolve issues and 

problems within a group setting.  Mr. Corcoran stated that he worked for 12 years as a 

retail store manager and pulled employees to find group solutions to solve problems.  

He also stated that he is Vice-Chair of many committees with the Keller-Williams Elite 

organization and RBAR. 

 

Councilor Goodman-Hinnershitz asked Mr. Corcoran to describe the role of a District 

Councilor.  Mr. Corcoran stated that a District Councilor is the voice and ears of the 

district and works with the body of Council for the City as a whole. 

 

Councilor Reed asked Mr. Corcoran how his expertise in housing will assist the City 

and Council and how he sees his role in bringing his experience to assist the City and 

outreach into his community.  Mr. Corcoran stated that he has been very pleased with 

the growing relationship between RBAR and the City as they work on housing issues.  

If appointed to the District 1 seat he will work to educate RBAR and his community 

about City issues. 

 

Councilor Waltman asked Mr. Corcoran about his observations on what the City is 

doing well and where the City needs to improve.  Mr. Corcoran stated that the City 

needs to improve its educational outreach and improve obtaining citizen input to make 

citizens feel less disenfranchised.  He also stated that the City has started to correct its 

many missteps. 

 

Councilor Waltman asked Mr. Corcoran to describe his experience with finance and 

budgets.  Mr. Corcoran stated that he has extensive experience with managing budgets 

and finances due to his experience in retail management.  He also stated that he has 

been a full time realtor for seven years.  He stated that a fulltime realtor is a business 

owner as they must manage their professional and personal finances successfully.  

 

Councilor Reed inquired if Mr. Corcoran intends to run for the District 1 seat in two (2) 

years and how he will communicate with Council and the Administration.  Mr. 



Corcoran stated that if appointed he does intend to run for the seat.  He noted the poor 

communication between past Mayors and City Council and expressed his hope that 

Mayor Spencer will correct that problem.  He also noted the need for strong 

communication between Council members. 

 

Councilor Goodman-Hinnershitz asked Mr. Corcoran what he sees as the biggest 

challenge of being appointed.  Mr. Corcoran stated that the biggest challenge will be 

learning all the facets of government; however, he stated that he will overcome that 

challenge by communicating and working with Councilors and the Administration. 

 

Councilor Marmarou asked Mr. Corcoran where he helped to create a solution where 

differing opinions were involved.  Mr. Corcoran stated that during his tenure as a 

computer specialist with Sovereign he would often find differing opinions about 

finding suitable solutions to technical problems and noted how he worked with various 

departments to find solutions to bridge the differing opinions and solve the problem. 

 

Councilor Marmarou asked Mr. Corcoran to state three (3) critical City issues.  Mr. 

Corcoran stated that to him the perception non-city residents have of Reading needs to 

change.  He stated that is the first issue he would like to correct.  He expressed the 

belief that the CORE program is a healthy step in correcting perceptions of the City.  

He noted the need to promote the many positives about Reading. He expressed the 

belief that the City’s aging, vacant and blighted housing stock is also a major problem.  

He also stated that absentee landlords contribute greatly to this problem.  He also 

expressed the belief that City based jobs need to be created and fostered. 

 

Councilor Goodman-Hinnershitz asked Mr. Corcoran how he believes the City will get 

out of Act 47.  Mr. Corcoran stated that at this point he is unsure but expressed the 

belief that the largest contributing factor is lack of revenue.  He stated that correcting 

the City’s housing will increase property values and help to correct the revenue gap. 

 

Councilor Reed inquired about how Mr. Corcoran sees City Councilors as a part of the 

Reading community.  Mr. Corcoran stated that he sees Councilors as Ambassadors 

who listed to various opinions, obtain citizen input and use the input and opinions to 

create solutions to community issues. 

 

Councilor Waltman asked Mr. Corcoran how he sees Reading in 10 years. Mr. Corcoran 

stated that he believes Reading will return to its small town feel as various 

neighborhoods and communities are corrected. 

 

 



Council President Acosta asked Mr. Corcoran if he is originally from Reading.  Mr. 

Corcoran stated that he is from Schuylkill County and moved here due to his marriage 

and job. 

 

Mr. Marmarou asked Mr. Corcoran how he feels about the Home Rule form of 

government.  Mr. Corcoran stated that as Council and the Mayor are elected to 

represent the citizens the form does not matter as long as the elected officials work 

together as a body.   

 

Councilor Sterner asked Mr. Corcoran to describe the neighborhood issues that inspired 

him to contact the City Clerk.  Mr. Corcoran stated that vandalism and theft was 

prevalent and he worked with the City Clerk to correct those issues.  He stated that 

being involved in resolving those neighborhood issues gave him a good feeling and 

made him want to expand that opportunity.  He stated that his main goal is to create a 

good, safe City where his 15 month old son will want to live when he is an adult. He 

also noted his goal to use his experience as a realtor to improve the City’s housing 

problems.  

 

Councilor Goodman-Hinnershitz noted Mr. Corcoran’s extensive involvement in the 

community.  Mr. Corcoran described his community efforts as an individual and as a 

realtor.  He also stated that as a full time realtor, he is an independent contractor and 

can set his own schedule. 

 

Legal Specialist Butler asked Adam Wagonseller to step forward and inquired why he 

decided to apply for this Council seat.  Mr. Wagonseller stated that he and his family 

have resided in Reading for many years.  He expressed his belief in the potential of 

Reading and noted his desire to be a part of growing this potential. 

 

Councilor Goodman-Hinnershitz asked Mr. Wagonseller what he sees as the biggest 

challenge with becoming a Council member.  Mr. Wagonseller stated that good 

communication, internally and externally, is the largest challenge.  He described his 

approach to informing residents about City issues. 

 

Mr. Sterner asked Mr. Wagonseller how long he has resided in District 1.  Mr. 

Wagonseller stated that he moved into District 1 in 2007.  He stated that he serves on 

the Democratic City and County Committee in 18-2 and is familiar with the 

neighborhood and City issues. 

 

Councilor Marmarou noted past problems with various Administrations and asked Mr. 

Wagonseller how he would correct those problems.  Mr. Wagonseller stated that the 



two (2) bodies must improve communication to find compromise so both are working 

together for the greater good of Reading. 

 

Council President Acosta noted Mr. Wagonseller’s work with the Democratic caucus.  

He inquired about his duties.  Mr. Wagonseller stated that his primary duties are 

constituent services and legislative work to find resolution through research.  He 

stated that the duties are very much like that of City Council. 

 

Councilor Reed inquired about issues created through Mr. Wagonseller’s commute to 

Harrisburg daily.  She noted that Council usually meets one to two nights per week at 

a minimum.  Mr. Wagonseller stated that he discussed this challenge with his 

employer, who promised to provide scheduling flexibility and leave time so meeting 

obligations would not cause problems. 

 

Councilor Waltman asked Mr. Wagonseller to define a successful City.  Mr. 

Wagonseller stated that a successful city has safe, clean streets with owner occupied 

homes and homes, in general, that are well maintained.  He also stated that successful 

cities need to create and foster jobs.  He noted the need to correct the perception people 

have of Reading. 

 

Councilor Waltman asked Mr. Wagonseller to name things Reading has and has not 

done well.  Mr. Wagonseller stated that Reading has had some recent success in 

economic development projects but has not communicated with Reading residents well. 

 

Councilor Reed asked Mr. Wagonseller how he would work to improve communication 

with the Administration and with Council members and if he would run for the seat in 

2013.  Mr. Wagonseller stated that he would work hard to improve communication 

and compromise between Council and the Administration, while working to be 

grudge-free when beginning to work on the next issue. He stated that he would also 

work to improve external communication with residents through the mail and web 

based applications.  He stated that he would evaluate his performance before deciding 

to run for the seat in 2013.   

 

Councilor Marmarou asked Mr. Wagonseller how he would work to correct problems 

within District 1.  Mr. Wagonseller stated that he would work with the City Clerk and 

the Administration. 

 

Councilor Goodman-Hinnershitz stated that Reading is painted as the poorest City.  

She asked Mr. Wagonseller how he would address this perception and reality.  Mr. 

Wagonseller stated that the City needs to work to create and foster jobs within Reading 



and improve housing and school issues to inspire the middle class to move back to 

Reading.  He expressed the belief that those things working together would correct 

Reading’s perception and reality. He stated that he appreciates this opportunity and the 

service of City Council. 

 

Legal Specialist Butler called John Santoro forward and asked him why he applied for 

the position. 

 

Mr. Santoro stated that he was born and raised in Reading and has volunteered in many 

capacities as an adult.  He expressed the belief that Reading has new opportunities 

with the new Mayor and that he would like to join Council as they work to improve 

Reading. 

 

Councilor Goodman-Hinnershitz asked Mr. Santoro what he sees as the greatest 

challenge of joining Council.  Mr. Santoro expressed the belief that the greatest 

challenge would be getting acclimated to the aspects of government operation.  He 

expressed the belief that he understands Council’s role and duties but will not really 

understand until he is appointed. 

 

Councilor Sterner asked Mr. Santoro how his experience with the Reading School Board 

would help him as a Councilor.  Mr. Santoro stated that his use of open door policy 

along with community meetings would help him as a Councilor. 

 

Councilor Marmarou noted that Mr. Santoro was once the City Treasurer.  He asked 

Mr. Santoro his opinion of this form of government.  Mr. Santoro stated that he is 

unsure as he is an outsider looking in.  However, he stated that the Commission form 

of government seemed to be more open to the needs of residents.  He stated that in 

general residents see the Home Rule form of government as less responsive. 

 

Council President Acosta asked Mr. Santoro to describe Reading’s biggest problem.  

Mr. Santoro stated that crime is Reading’s biggest problem, along with a dwindling tax 

base and population increase.  He stated that Reading was not prepared for this 

population increase.  He noted the downsizing of the City schools in the 1990’s and 

now the need to expand the number of school buildings 20 years later. 

 

Councilor Reed asked Mr. Santoro to describe the skills he would bring to Council and 

how he will communicate with Council and the Administration.  Mr. Santoro stated 

that he is able to work well with everyone.  He described his lifelong leadership in 

different organizations.  He stated that he says what he means and means what he 

says. He expressed the belief that the experience of this Council and the new Mayor will 



put Reading on the right track. 

 

Councilor Waltman asked Mr. Santoro to describe two (2) things that make Reading 

strong.  Mr. Santoro stated that Reading’s strongest features are its diversity, its 

educational opportunities and its architecture.  He stated that although Reading is 

viewed as a poor City, it is very rich in its diversity and population.  He stated that the 

downside is that Reading seems to attract people who need assistance and social 

services. 

 

Councilor Waltman inquired about Mr. Santoro’s 10 year vision for Reading.  Mr. 

Santoro stated that he believes that Reading will improve its tax base and provide a 

better quality of life for its residents in 10 years. 

 

Councilor Reed asked Mr. Santoro how he would address the apathy of the voters and 

residents.  She also inquired if he will run for office in 2013.  Mr. Santoro stated that he 

does intend to run in 2013.  He expressed the belief that to address apathy, citizens 

must be made to feel that they are part of the system and part of the solution. 

 

Councilor Acosta stated that District 1 is probably the most diverse district in the City.   

He noted the differences between the precincts on the both sides of the Bingaman Street 

Bridge.  He asked Mr. Santoro how he would address those differences.  Mr. Santoro 

stated that he would address that issue in a block by block, neighborhood by 

neighborhood approach. 

 

Councilor Marmarou asked Mr. Santoro how he would correct District 1 issues.  Mr. 

Santoro stated that he would work with the City Clerk to learn about issues and resolve 

problems. 

 

Councilor Goodman-Hinnershitz asked Mr. Santoro how he would help move the City 

through Act 47. Mr. Santoro stated that he watched the Act 47 special meeting.  He 

stated that he saw the anguish Councilors felt when they voted in favor of the Act 47 

Recovery Plan.  He stated that he believes Council felt the step was necessary but were 

very upset about making that vote. He stated that witnessing that meeting made him 

want to become involved in City government. He thanked Council for this opportunity. 

 

Legal Specialist Butler called Chad Maurer forward and asked him why he applied for 

the position. 

 

Mr. Maurer stated that he is a lifelong City resident, RHS graduate and wants to 

represent the interests of the City. 



 

Councilor Goodman Hinnershitz asked Mr. Maurer to describe the biggest challenge 

within District 1.  Mr. Maurer expressed the belief that communication is the largest 

challenge. 

 

Councilor Sterner asked Mr. Maurer to describe the role of a Councilor.  Mr. Maurer 

stated that Councilors need to be prepared to assist when various issues arise.  He 

expressed his belief in the need to use the Feedback program on WEEU as a 

communications tool. 

 

Councilor Marmarou asked Mr. Maurer how he would correct the past communication 

problems with the Administration.  Mr. Maurer noted the need for the group to work 

together to find a solution. 

 

Councilor Acosta asked Mr. Maurer to describe his best leadership quality.  Mr. 

Maurer stated that his strongest asset is his self-motivation.  He noted that he is a very 

hands on person. 

 

Councilor Reed asked Mr. Maurer how he would use that skill to move Reading 

forward.  Mr. Maurer stated that he would educate citizens and encourage them to 

become a volunteer firefighter. 

 

Councilor Waltman asked Mr. Maurer if he believes that Reading is a poor city.  Mr. 

Maurer stated that Reading has many great aspects. 

 

Councilor Reed asked Mr. Maurer if he intends to run for the seat in 2013 and how he 

would work to improve communications.  Mr. Maurer stated that before making that 

decision he would seek input from citizens. He stated that he would encourage citizens 

to participate on the Boards, Authorities and Commissions.  He also stated that he 

would go door to door to reengage citizens. 

 

Councilor Acosta asked Mr. Maurer about the biggest District 1 challenge.  Mr. Maurer 

stated that District 1 needs a stronger police presence.  He noted the need to improve 

recreation services to get kids off the streets.  He also noted the need for the Street 

Sweeper program to move into the 18th Ward. 

 

Councilor Goodman-Hinnershitz noted that Mr. Maurer worked as a teacher’s aide in 

the Reading School District.  She inquired about his experience there.  Mr. Maurer 

stated that working there was a rewarding and challenging experience.  He described 

the teamwork between staff and students. 



 

Councilor Sterner asked Mr. Maurer what experience he would bring to Council.  Mr. 

Maurer stated that he is willing to dedicate the time to help with City issues. He stated 

that he admires the work and dedication of Council. 

 

Legal Specialist Butler asked Jim McHale to step forward and explain why he applied 

for the position.   

 

Mr. McHale stated that he ran unsuccessfully in the Mayor’s race.  He stated that he 

ran for Mayor to improve the City and that the opening of this Council seat again brings 

that opportunity. 

 

Councilor Goodman-Hinnershitz asked Mr. McHale about the largest challenges of 

working on Council.  Mr. McHale stated that he has no ill will for Mayor Spencer and 

that there is no animosity between them.  He expressed the belief that shifting to 

working with the members of Council will be an easy fit. 

 

Councilor Sterner asked Mr. McHale how long he has lived in District 1 and how he 

would interact with District 1 residents. 

 

Mr. McHale stated that District 1 is the most diverse District in the City, socially and 

financially.  He stated that he founded the South of Penn group and resides at South 5th 

and Bingaman Streets.  He stated that while running for Mayor he gained an 

understanding of the range of issues these residents experience.  He stated that he has 

been investing in the City for six (6) years and has resided in District 1 for 2 ½ years. 

 

Councilor Marmarou inquired how Mr. McHale would communicate with the body of 

Council and with the Administration.   Mr. McHale stated that while running for 

Mayor he planned to arrange one-on-one meetings with district councilors; however, 

now he would seek one-on-one meetings with the Mayor. 

 

Council President Acosta asked Mr. McHale what qualities he would bring to the body 

of Council.  Mr. McHale stated that running for Mayor was a unique experience as it 

educated him on Reading citizens and their needs. He stated that he would bring 

leadership to the table and his willingness to fix Reading. 

 

Councilor Reed asked Mr. McHale how he would correct Reading’s perception and if he 

would run for the seat in two (2) years.  Mr. McHale stated that he would promote 

Reading’s best features and work to solve Reading’s largest problems such as its 

financial and crime problems. He expressed the belief that Reading needs to nail these 



two (2) issues.  He noted that people believe Philadelphia is also dangerous; however, 

crime seems to be centralized in two (2) areas alone. He noted the difference between 

perception and reality. He stressed the need for a police presence in downtown 

Reading.  He stated that he will not seek election to this seat in 2013. 

 

Council President Acosta stated that he recently received a book of famous quotes and 

the quote “government should do what people cannot” touched him. He asked Mr. 

McHale how he would apply this quote to becoming a member of Council.  Mr. 

McHale stated that he would work to improve the City’s street lighting in the South 5th 

Street area through his tree project.  He noted the need for government to improve its 

planning for street light and infrastructure improvements. 

 

Council President Acosta noted that people and business owners continue to press for 

improved services but denounce increases in fees to provide services.  Mr. McHale 

noted the need for the City to define its scope and live within that scope. 

 

Councilor Marmarou asked Mr. McHale to provide an example of his past leadership to 

correct a problem.  Mr. McHale recalled his experience in Thailand when he was 

brought in as a consultant to address a project, which he did by defining a scope and 

goal. 

 

Councilor Sterner described the lobbying that occurs when certain issues arise.  Mr. 

McHale expressed the belief that working towards compromise and consensus can 

safeguard against lobbying efforts.  He noted the need for Councilors to make 

individual decisions on issues based on the merit of the issue. 

 

Councilor Goodman-Hinnershitz asked Mr. McHale how he would bring various 

parties together to address District 1 issues.  Mr. McHale stated that he would 

communicate with the Mayor about his agenda and work with him.  He noted the need 

for continued economic development to improve the City. 

 

Legal Specialist Butler called Louis Perugini forward and asked him why he applied for 

this seat. 

 

Mr. Perugini stated that he decided to apply as he can provide a different point of view. 

 

Councilor Goodman-Hinnershitz asked Mr. Perugini about the greatest challenge 

caused by joining Council.  Mr. Perugini stated that he does not see challenge but 

collaboration to pass ordinances to benefit the City. 

 



Councilor Sterner asked Mr. Perugini how he would communicate with District 1 

residents.  Mr. Perugini stated that he would have an open door policy and make 

himself available through postcard mailings of his contact information. 

 

Councilor Sterner asked Mr. Perugini how he views working with Council and the 

Administration.  Mr. Perugini noted the need for the City to speak with one voice.  He 

described his years of experience and insight. 

 

Councilor Marmarou asked Mr. Perugini to compare the Home Rule and Commission 

forms of government.  Mr. Perugini expressed the belief that the Home Rule form is 

much cleaner, as it eliminated patronage and nepotism.  However, he stated that the 

Commission form offered better communication for residents.  He added that Council 

acts more legislatively now. He noted the need to follow the political to find where the 

favors lie. 

 

Councilor Marmarou asked Mr. Perugini what he thinks of the new Communication 

Policy.  Mr. Perugini noted that various leaks will go to the press, when flaws exist. He 

described his run for the Congressional 6th District seat. 

 

Council President Acosta asked Mr. Perugini what he has learned after 40 years of life 

experience.  Mr. Perugini stated that he has learned humility.  He noted his 

perseverance and willingness to work to improve Reading. He stated that the opening 

of the bypass killed Lancaster Avenue businesses.  He agreed that District 1 is diverse 

but promised to work to identify its large and small issues.  While he said that he is 

unsure if he would run, he has one life to live and he wants to give back and help 

people. Although he stated that he knows that this job comes without guarantee of 

gratitude. 

 

Council President Acosta announced that Council will hold a special meeting on 

Monday, January 30th at 5 pm in Council Chambers to make the required appointment.  

The work session adjourned at approximately 6:40 pm. 

 

Respectfully submitted by Linda A. Kelleher CMC, City Clerk 

 

 


